SAPIENZA UNIVERSITY OF ROME

## ROME AND ITS BOTANIC GARDENS HISTORY AND EVENTS



edited by Fabio Attorre and Franco Bruno





ORTO BOTANICO Largo Cristina di Svezia, 24 Tel. 06 6864193-6830937-6832300 DIPARTIMENTO DI BIOLOGIA AMBIENTALE SAPIENZA UNIVERSITÀ DI ROMA Piazzale A. Moro, 5 - 00185 ROMA Tel. 06 4991 2651 Fax 06 4991 2435 e-mail: Ammdbv027@uniroma1.it



Copyright © 2022

**Sapienza Università Editrice** Piazzale Aldo Moro 5 – 00185 Roma

www.editricesapienza.it editrice.sapienza@uniroma1.it

ISBN 978-88-9377-224-2

Iscrizione Registro Operatori Comunicazione n. 11420

Finito di stampare nel mese di luglio 2022 presso Sapienza Università Editrice

La traduzione, l'adattamento totale o parziale, la riproduzione con qualsiasi mezzo (compresi microfilm, film, fotocopie), nonché la memorizzazione elettronica, sono riservati per tutti i Paesi. L'editore è a disposizione degli aventi diritto con i quali non è stato possibile comunicare, per eventuali involontarie omissioni o inesattezze nella citazione delle fonti e/o delle foto.

All Rights Reserved. No part of this publication may be reproduced or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic or mechanical, including photocopy, recording or any other information storage and retrieval system, without prior permission in writing from the publisher. All eligible parties, if not previously approached, can ask directly the publisher in case of unintentional omissions or incorrect quotes of sources and/or photos.

In copertina: Villa Corsini Botanic Garden Entrance. Drawing by Henrike Berg Panà (modified)

To Pietro Romualdo Pirotta

## ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

For the editing of the centenary volume (1883-1993), first issued in 1984

Paola Lanzara, Paolo Benedetto Nocchi, Angela Dinelli, Giuseppe Massari, Lucina Caravaggi, Giorgio Cresciani, Ezio Pellegrini, Sandro Pignatti, Henrike Berg Panà, Gino Biagiotti, Paolo Cipollina

also for this edition (2022) Flavio Tarquini, Caterina Giovinazzo and Giulia Torta, moreover Viviana Calvagno, Giulia Paoletti and Lydia Anderlini for english translation

FOR THE REPRODUCTION OF ARTWORK OF THEIR PROPERTY Archivio del Museo dell'Orto Botanico - Roma Archivio di Stato - Roma Archivio Storico Capitolino - Sezione Biblioteca Romana Biblioteca Angelica - Roma Biblioteca dell'Istituto di Archeologia e Storia dell'Arte - Roma Biblioteca ed Erbario del Dipartimento di Biologia Ambientale della Sapienza Università di Roma Gabinetto Comunale Disegni e Stampe - Roma Gabinetto Nazionale Disegni e Stampe - Roma Dipartimento di Biologia dell'Università di Padova - Sezione Iconografia Botanica Museo di Anatomia comparata dell'Università di Roma

The original volume of this book, commemorating the centenary of the Botanic Garden in its present location, was published in 1984 and the reproductions of the historical images were given to the academic institution either free of charge or for the cost of only the photo or photocopy without any receipt. However, the Botanic Garden declares itself fully willing to settle any claims for reproduction rights for those images for which it has not been possible to cite or find the original source.

## INDEX

HISTORY (Paola Lanzara, Paolo Benedetto Nocchi)	
Ancient tradition	11
The monastic garden	12
Nicolas III Pomerium	16
Nicolas V <i>Hortus Herbarum</i>	20
Horto de' Semplici and the Academic Teaching	
Michele Mercati and the Natural Collections	29
The Academy of Lincei and the progress of Botany	30
The garden in the first half of the $17^{ m th}$ century	38
Plants of the New World and exotic Collections	41
The Medical Garden of the Roman Archiginnasium	45
The scientific fame of the Garden under G.B.Triumfetti	46
The Hortus Romanus and the tournefortian system	49
The 'Orto bottanico' at 'Longara'	52
The Botanic Garden as Natural Museum	
The french projects and a Botanical Garden that never existed	60
The Botanic Garden returns to the Convent	64
P.R. Pirotta founds the Botanical Institute in 'Via Milano' and the Garden at Villa Corsini	68
Villa Riario-Corsini	71
The artistic presences	80
The Horti Getae	80
The structure and the entities composition of the garden until 1927	81
The modern garden	
Variations of Diversity in one hundred Years of management of the Botanic Garden of Rome	
in the Gardens of Villa Riario Corsini (1883-1983) (Franco Bruno)	89
Structure and composition of the garden after1990 (Franco Bruno)	
Botanic Gardens today (Fabio Attorre & Giulia Torta)	117
Bibliography	126
Editors' biography	129

## INTRODUCTION

Towards the end of the 1800s, the palace of the Corsini family and its garden were acquired by the Italian State. The complex had undergone a radical transformation in the mid-eighteenth century, when Cardinal Neri Maria Corsini had entrusted the renovation of this property to the architect Ferdinando Fuga. In this occasion the palace was transformed from Renaissance to eighteenth-century, and the surrounding area was enriched by a magnificent set of low buildings, fountains and ornamental architecture that became the backdrop for laurel and Italian gardens.

When the first director of the Botanic Garden, Pietro Romualdo Pirotta, took possession of this area (1883), it was already in its fourth official location. In fact, the Botanic Garden of Rome has a history full of vicissitudes, concerning both the scientific institution and the area of residence itself. On these tracks moves the research "Rome and its Botanical Garden", to remember both the history of the Botanical Garden at Villa Corsini, and the origins of this institution, starting from the first Hortus Simplicium of 1278. In Rome, in fact, the Botanic Garden is the heir of the Viridarium, the section of the Vatican gardens in which the papal archiater (chief physician) cultivated medicinal plants. The first document on this institution is represented by the plaque, that today is in the "Sala dei Capitani" of the Capitoline Museums, which states that Pope Nicholas III, in 1278, had a sector of the garden built for this purpose. Nicholas V, in 1477, took an interest in its Viridaria and Pius V, in the 16th century, called the Tuscan physician Michele Mercati to direct the Vatican Garden. Since there was a collection of medicinal plants in the Vatican Garden, from which the university professors took the plants to show their students (Ostensiones simplicium), there was no immediate need in Rome for a university Botanic Garden, as instead was the case in other Italian cities, such as Padua and Pisa.

In fact, Botanic Gardens were created mainly for the cultivation of medicinal plants. Concentrating medicinal species in a single place of cultivation gave a series of remarkable advantages. First, it was not necessary to search for plants in nature, and this led to a considerable saving of time and, also, there was no risk of making mistakes by collecting plants that had no medicinal principles or, even worse, were poisonous. In fact, Francesco Bonafede, who taught medicine at the University of Padua, asked the city of Venice in 1543 to establish the first botanical garden in the world, not only to facilitate learning, but especially to improve the recognition of medicinal plants. The medical treatments of those times, in fact, more often led to deaths rather than to recoveries!

In the famous "De Materia Medica" by Dioscorides of the first century AD, in fact, to avoid any confusion the Author did not insert illustrations, but only very detailed descriptions of the plants (names, synonyms, areas of diffusion, as well as their properties, preparations, etc.). We must wait for the publication of the splendid Anicia Juliana Codex in 512 AD to see full-page illustrations of the plants of Dioscorides' herbarium. For the next thousand years only copies upon copies of these illustrations were made, and in many different languages, so that slowly the illustrations no longer corresponded to the habitus of the medicinal plants, thus causing confusion in their recognition. On the contrary, being able to observe these plants all together in a controlled and circumscribed environment, as in a Botanic Garden, would have facilitated the teaching.

Even though the University of Rome was the first to establish the Chair of Botany during the papacy of Leo X in 1513, it had to wait until September 15 1660 for the creation of a proper university Botanic Garden, behind the Acqua Paola fountain on the Janiculum hill by Alexander VII. It was during this period that Botany and Medicine took different paths, and Botanic Gardens soon became the ideal location place for the numerous plants discovered and brought back from the explorations around the word. From gardens of medicinal plants they soon became experimental places not only for the acclimatization of exotic plants, that the aristocratic families competed with each other to have in their gardens, but especially for the systematic study of plants, a role which has been preserved until today, and which has led to the modern development of Botany.

From the Janiculum hill, in 1820 the Botanic Garden was moved to the nearby Palazzo Salviati, then, after the unification of Italy in 1873, it was moved to the Viminale hill (in the Garden of the Convent of S. Lorenzo in Panisperna) and finally, in 1883, it was established at the Villa Corsini. Currently, the Botanical Garden of Villa Corsini is an integral part of the Sapienza University of Rome; it occupies an area of about 12 hectares and in addition to its institutional museum characteristics – it contains important collections - it represents the seat of scientific research and permanent environmental education in the heart of Trastevere, one of the oldest neighborhoods of Rome. Even if the current location is inadequate for a modern Botanic Garden, nevertheless it can attract many visitors, facilitating an awareness about the importance of scientific investigations for the preservation of the magnificent and irreplaceable diversity of plants, so that this awareness may be passed on to the future generations.

Fabio Attorre & Franco Bruno